
Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - September 20, 2010

Page 1

The regular meeting of the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey
was held on September  2010 at 7:00 p.m. in the meeting room of the Township Hall, 2600 Bayshore Road, Villas,
New Jersey.

The Clerk announced that the meeting was being held in compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act and that
adequate notice of the meeting had been provided according to law.

The following members of Council were present for roll call taken by the Clerk:

Councilmember Thomas Conrad
Councilmember Wayne Mazurek
Councilmember Glenn Douglass

Deputy Mayor Kevin Lare
Mayor Michael Beck

Also present: Anthony Monzo, Solicitor, Kathleen McPherson, Manager and Asst. Clerk Horwath

WORK SESSION

Discussion on Proposed License & Service Fee Changes
Councilmember Mazurek said they had been discussing the issue for a few weeks and hadn �t gotten anywhere.  He
said he wanted to make a proposal and hope they could move on.  He said there were only two ways to raise the
money towards the shortfall and that was to increase fees or cut expenses.  He said he would like to make
amendments to the ordinance as follows: remove the marina fee increase, leave the fees as they were to 
apartments, rooming houses, retirement homes, hotel & motel.  He agreed with raising the rental fee from $50 to $75
per year.  He said leave section 612-5, trailers and campgrounds as is.
Councilmember Mazurek said to add a section that charged for commercial trash pick up as recommended by the
Director of Public Works and start collecting the fees in January 2011and the fees end as well as all commercial
trash collection on December 31, 2011.  He said it would give the business owners time to get ready and the
Township would be out of commercial trash collection.  
Mayor Beck said he didn �t have a problem with it and that wasn �t to say they wouldn �t revisit some of the other fees.
He said they would have to move towards collecting fees that they hadn �t in the past.  
Councilmember Mazurek said he agreed with Deputy Mayor Lare in the past meeting that they didn �t want to hit the
business owners twice with a fee increase in their mercantile license and trash collection.  
Councilmember Conrad said he would agree with his proposal and a brief discussion ensued on the various fees
that weren �t raised.
Councilmember Douglass said he agreed,  but under the commercial trash were they leaving the option for the
businesses to opt out.
Mayor Beck said yes, they couldn �t force them to participate.
Deputy Mayor Lare said they were thinking identical on the proposal.  He said they needed to think through and how
they were going to collect the fees.
Manager McPherson said they could collect it through the Tax Office and bill quarterly for it.



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - September 20, 2010

Page 2

Deputy Mayor Lare asked if they could do it with the staff they had.
Manager McPherson said it wouldn �t be a problem the Tax Office took Visa and Mastercard.
Deputy Mayor Lare said the biggest problem would be out of the 300 properties who would participate.
Manager McPherson said they could send out notices now that they would be charging beginning in January.
Mayor Beck said he would support it and the last time he thought they were dropping the rentals and that �s why he
didn �t support it.  He said at some point they would have to go back and look at the other areas.
Mayor Beck opened the meeting for public comment.
Joe Winters asked realistically with what was being proposed would it work.  He added they were dropping a lot of
fees.  
Mayor Beck asked what he was referring to?
Mr. Winters said the picking up of the trash.
Mayor Beck said yes, it would work and at the end of the year it would be done.
Councilmember Mazurek said the fee the businesses would be paying the Township would be less than a
commercial hauler would charge.
Mr. Winters said in the ordinance they wouldn �t be changing a lot of fees.
Councilmember Mazurek said they had changed fees with the zoning and the fees that were eliminated were
generally mercantile fees.   
Mr. Winters asked what year were they going to raise fees in the Township.  He said they could be raised at least
$1.00.  He said what they were doing was putting it back on the taxpayers.
Mayor Beck said it was a compromise.  
Councilmember Conrad said the boat slips were raised $1.00 in 2008.
John Flemming 8 N. Andrielle Lane thanked Council for working hard to resolve the situation and they were moving
in the right direction.  He hoped they would look at other costs in the Township because the taxpayers were being
strung out with the bills that had to be paid.  He said they needed to say  �no � and needed to get in line with the costs
and  unions.
Mayor Beck said Council had inherited the contracts and they had no control over that.  
Mr. Fleming said it was deeper than most people understood and didn �t see all the obligations Townships and
Municipalities had.  
Mayor Beck said the one disappointing thing he saw with the Governor �s toolkit was that this Council expressed
serious concern with interest arbitration and it hadn �t been addressed in the toolkit.  He said it needed to be
overhauled.
Bob Rizzo of Mickles Run commended Councilmember Mazurek and said they would miss him as a Councilmember
and the only Democrat.   
Ed Butler asked Councilmember Mazurek what the difference was between the original proposal and his proposal. 
He also said that Council had asked the department heads for recommendations and they didn �t go along with what
was suggested.
Manager McPherson said the most recent figure with the increases would be $293,164.00.
Councilmember Mazurek said it should roughly be around $281,000.00 would be the difference between what was
proposed and what he proposed.
Manager McPherson said they were reducing about $25,000.00.  
Mayor Beck said they were at about 50% of what they started out to do.
Mr. Butler said he hoped Council would do better with the contracts.
Jay Sporal of Seashore Campsites wanted to be clear about the commercial trash pick up.
Councilmember Mazurek said January 1st the Township would be charging for commercial trash pick up.
Mr. Sporal said that was for one year and after that they were on their own.  He said he appreciated what they tried



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - September 20, 2010

Page 3

to do, but he wanted to make a couple of points.  He mentioned about taxes and said when residential taxes went up
so did their business and he understood how they felt.  He said he understood the economy and they did not raise
their rates this year because the people were hurting.  He said the people still continue to come here and he would
try and bring the tourist here who spend their money in the community.  
Mr. Sporal said the campground closed in the winter but some people lived there, would they get residential trash
pick up.  He asked if someone would pick up the dumpster in the winter with their personal trash.
Manager McPherson asked how he was generating so much trash.
Mr. Sporal said there were three homes back there and they had been there for years.  He also asked if the
recycling would be collected.
Manager McPherson said that hadn �t changed.  

Review of Consent and Regular Agenda Items
Councilmember Conrad said he would like #2010-234 & #2010-243 moved to the regular agenda.

Public Questions on Consent Agenda and/or Regular Agenda Items

Resolution #2010-251 Removal of DRBA Property from the Tax Sale
Joe Winters of Florida Ave. inquired about  #2010-251and asked why they were being moved from the tax sale.
Mayor Beck asked Solicitor Monzo to explain.
Solicitor Monzo said they were properties that had been vacant for a full year and they had been discussing with the
DRBA to grant them exemption for properties that had been vacant for a full year, but they had never finalized an
agreement last year.  He said the resolution didn �t cancel the taxes it just removed them from the tax sale pending a
meeting with the DRBA .  He said they were different properties from the last time and a different situation.
Mr. Winters asked why the DRBA was tax exempt.
Solicitor Monzo said the DRBA �s position was they were holding the properties for rent as part of economic
development with their compact which was between Delaware and New Jersey.  He said they hadn �t agreed to
anything at this point and they needed to explain why they should be exempt.  He said they felt they should meet
and remove them from the tax sale but not cancel them.  
Mr. Winters said there were people that may not occupy their house for a whole year, were they going to let them go
if they didn �t pay their taxes.
Solicitor Monzo said it was a compact statute agreed to by Delaware and New Jersey.
Mayor Beck said they were going to sit and talk with them and he felt the communication had been better with the
DRBA.  He said the water allocation was returned, they had come to Council and wanted to resolve the issue and he
said it had shown a new attitude of the DRBA and they were moving forward and not forgiving one nickle.
Mr. Winters asked if it was going to come out in a discussion at a Township meeting and to let the public know what
the DRBA was giving and what the Township was giving.

Resolution #2010-252 Beachfill Project - Cape May Meadows Area
Janet Pitts, Pinetree Road inquired about Resolution #252 and asked if the Township was committing any funds
towards it for Cape Meadows area.
Manager McPherson said  �no �, just granting them an easement.

Resolution #2010-244- Small Cities Fair Housing Officer
Frank Serraco asked for an explanation of Resolution #244.
Manager McPherson said it was a federal requirement because the money came from HUD and it was a



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - September 20, 2010

Page 4

requirement under the Small Cities Program.
Mayor Beck said it gave the Township the ability to apply for the grants in Res. #245 and 246. 

Consent Agenda
Approval of Minutes September 8, 2010

Res. #2010-242, Payment of Vouchers, $2,113,771.29
Res. #2010-244, Identifying Small Cities Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity Officer
Res. #2010-245, Adoption os State Model Citizen Participation Plan for DCA Small Cities Program
Res. #2010-246, Submission of a Small cities Housing Rehabilitation Application, $200,000
Res. #2010-247, Public Facilities Grant Application for $500,000, Repair Storm Sewer Outfall Lines

(Wildwood, Arbor, Cloverdale, Greenwood & St. John �s)
Res. #2010-248, Authorization for the Refund of Taxes (2 properties - overpayments)
Res. #2010-249, A Resolution Requesting Release of Demolition Bond for Block 114, Lots 21-26,

11 Bay Avenue, Villas
Res. #2010-250, Resolution Approving Project Proposal Between Hatch Mott MacDonald and the

Township of Lower for Engineering Services Related to  Station Road & 
Municipal Parking Lot Improvements, Phase 2 (Final design, bid documents,
permitting process for Count & State, $30,250)

Res. #2010-251, A Resolution of the Township of Lower Removing Certain Properties Leased by
the Delaware River and Bay Authority at the Cape May Airport from the Tax Sale
Scheduled for October 4, 2010

Res. #2010-252, Authorization for Approval of Damage Reduction Agreement Between the
Township of Lower and the State of New Jersey, NJ Department of Environmental
Protection (Beachfill project - Cape May Meadows Area)

Res. #2010-253, A Resolution Requesting Return of CD #xxxxx1467 for Canyon Club; Block 823,
Lot 3.01; Escrow #P06-06-08 (Return of CD leaving other CD for Performance
Guarantee)

Res. #2010-254, Resolution Supporting New Jersey Run for the Fallen on September 25 and 26
Ord. #2010-10, An Ordinance Amending Chapters 185, Brush, Grass and Debris; 206,  Unfit

Buildings; 213, Private Campgrounds; 235, Uniform Construction Code; 359,
Garage and Private Sales; 400, Land Development; 432, Mercantile Licenses;
500, Property Maintenance; 612, Trailer Camps, to Update the Fees Related to
Each Chapter; and Amending Various Recreation Fees, 1st rdg. (Removed from
9/8 agenda) 2nd rdg. Oct. 4

Councilmember Mazurek motioned to adopt the consent agenda seconded by Councilmember Douglass.
The consent agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �,
Councilmember Mazurek,  �yes �, Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck,
 �yes �.
                                                              Regular Agenda



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - September 20, 2010

Page 5

Res. #2010-234, Resolution Approving New Fee Schedule For Recreation Department (Increasing
various fees associated with sports, cheerleading and the use of the municipal
pool) (Withdrawn 9/8)

Councilmember Conrad said he had no problem with the pool fees going up.  He said for the kids he felt
$5.00 was a big problem especially if people had a couple kids playing sports.  
Councilmember Mazurek said he thought there were different fees if you had multiple kids playing. 
A brief discussion ensued on the fees for multiple kids in the family.
Mayor Beck said the fees were recommended by the Recreation Advisory Board.
Councilmember Conrad said they also recommended a charge for the use of the meeting room at Millman
Center, but they weren �t talking about that.
Mayor Beck said they could do that do, he said the fees were recommended two years ago and hadn �t
been raised.  He said they didn �t raise them two years ago because they didn �t need the money.  He said
he agreed about the pool since it hadn �t been raised since 1985.  
Mayor Beck said it was tough to charge the kids to play sports, but the increase was recommended two
years ago.  
Councilmember Conrad said there were 10 groups using the Millman Center and that would roughly be
$3,000.00.
A discussion ensued about the fees and whether or not to charge for the use of the Millman Center.
Councilmember Conrad said they recommended it, so get it in the resolution.
Mayor Beck asked what the rest of Council felt about the fees.  Everyone agreed with the pool fees.
Councilmember Douglass said he was fine with the pool, he saw Councilmember Conrad �s point.  He said
fees could be difficult with a large family.  He said they did discuss if a fund could be available at the
recreation center for people that couldn �t afford the fees if that was a possibility.
Mayor Beck said what he said was if there was a child that didn �t have the $5.00 to play a sport he would
put the money up.
Deputy Mayor Lare said it wasn �t just the $5 it was the $40.00 cleats, $50.00 jersey he said the cost were
compounded.  He said his goal was to have the greatest involvement in the youth programs.  He said the
increases were based on last year figures and they were down this year.
Mayor Beck said the goal was also to pay the bills.  He said they needed all sections to chip in.  He said
everyone throughout the Township would be impacted.
Deputy Mayor Lare said it was $7,100.00 and if they wanted to raise them do it.
Councilmember Conrad said he said he came up with the figure of $7,755.00.
A discussion ensued about the fees and hardships the families faced now.
Deputy Mayor Lare said he wanted to see every kid that wanted to be involved be involved whether  they
could afford it or not.  He also added that 51% of the kids that attended LT Elementary School received
free or reduced lunches.
Mayor Beck said it was easy to say not to raise the marinas, but what was the other plan.  He said if they
didn �t raise fees they would have to lay off workers.  He said he had to do it and the money had to come
from somewhere.  He said it was a sign to the employees that they were willing to make the hard stand
because they were saying to the employees they wanted them to maybe take a pay freeze.  
Mayor Beck said no one wanted to do the hard thing.  He said someone voted for the contracts and now



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - September 20, 2010

Page 6

they had to pay for it.  
Councilmember Conrad said it wasn �t all the contracts,  what happened to all those years of not paying the
pensions.
A discussion ensued about the pension payments and contracts.
Mayor Beck asked Councilmember Mazurek his thoughts on the recreation fees.
Councilmember Mazurek asked about the fee increases, he understood it to be a one time $5 increase for
the initial child and the fees for additional children were the same.
Manager McPherson said they would get a reduced rate.
A brief discussion ensued about the fees for the recreation center.
Council agreed to the pool increase.
Deputy Mayor Lare mentioned to increase the fee for non residents.
Manager McPherson said other activities were going up $5.00 and the football was going up $10.00 and
that seemed to be the biggest sport.
Mayor Beck said just raise the pool for now and take everything else out.
Mayor Beck opened the meeting for public comment.

Proposed Fee Increases
Frank Serraco of East Tampa, asked the Deputy Mayor who paid for cleats and jerseys last year before
the fee increase.
Deputy Mayor Lare said the parents did.
A discussion ensued between Mr. Serraco and Deputy Mayor Lare about paying for the cleats and jerseys
for the kids.
Ed Butler 7 Delaware Bay Drive, he said they were looking at the minimal from what was proposed.  He
said Councilmember Conrad wanted to start charging non - profit organizations at the Millman Center.
Councilmember Conrad said he brought it up because it was proposed by the Recreation Advisory Board
he said if they were going to be fair then raise it across the board, but that wasn �t happening.  He said if
they were going to do sports, then do everything that was recommended not part of it to be fair.
Mr. Butler said if they wanted to be fair take the recommendations they were given and implement them.  
Eric Simonsen asked if any options were explored such as selling advertisements at the St. John of God
field and other fields that had advertising there.
Councilmember Conrad motioned to adopt the resolution seconded by Councilmember Douglass.  The
resolution was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember
Mazurek,  �yes �, Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck,  �yes �.

Res. #2010-243, Resolution of the Township of Lower Approving An Absence From Meetings
Policy for Elected Officials and Appointed Board Members (Suggested as part of
Local Government Best Practices Checklist)

Councilmember Conrad said it was a resolution to have a resolution.  He said the resolution said nothing
happened to elected officials.  He felt there should be something there for appointed officials if they missed
so many meetings they possibly would be removed from the board.  He said the resolution had nothing.   
Mayor Beck said it was put on for the Governor �s checklist.  He said absences wasn �t an issue and if there



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - September 20, 2010

Page 7

was they were notified by the Chairman of the Board.  He said the penalty the Township had was they
could be removed.
Councilmember Mazurek motioned to adopt the resolution seconded by Councilmember Conrad.  The
resolution was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember
Mazurek,  �yes �, Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck,  �yes �.

                                                           Administrative Reports
August Reports Animal Control, Construction - LT & WCM, Dog Licensing, Engineer, Fire Bureau,

Municipal Clerk, Municipal Court, Tax Collector, Vital Statistics 

                                                                           Council Comments
Councilmember Conrad said the Farmers Market had ended.  The event was successful and the vendors were
great.
Mayor Beck said Eileen Kreis would speak about the Run for the Fallen Soldiers.
Eileen said the run would be held on September 25th and start at 6:00 a.m.  She asked people to come out and
support the runners.
Mayor Beck said the call had come in about two months ago and Eileen had been working on it since.

                                                                             Public Comments
                                                                              
                                                                             MUA
Bob Rizzo,  Mickles Run wanted to comment on the article he read in the paper about the towns tap the MUA for
cash.  He said he was glad to see that Lower Township didn �t do it.
                                                                             County Road Conditions
  He said he wrote a letter to Dale Foster in July about the road conditions in Lower Township.  He said it took
 months to get a response, but Mr. Foster replied with a detailed letter.  He asked Council to keep on top of the
issue.
Councilmember Conrad said Mr. Rizzo wrote a letter a couple months ago about road conditions and Council sent a
resolution about Fishing Creek and still haven �t had a response and called several times.
                                                                               Sign Ordinance
Mr. Rizzo said he would leave the real estate ordinance until the next meeting, but it was passed in 2006.  He said 
the real estates were doing whatever they wanted.  He said real estate signs were all over the place and there was
no sense passing an ordinance unless they plan to enforce them.
                                                                      Fee for Use of the Millman Center
Mr. Rizzo told Councilmember Conrad at no time during the Bennett �s project did any senior citizen complain about
the project or the waste going on there.
Councilmember Conrad said they did, there were many complaints.  He said he wasn �t going against senior citizens.
Mr. Rizzo said it was very upsetting  that he complained about the seniors when they receive very little from the
Township.  He said more than 22% of the people living in the Township were over 65 and they paid a lot of the
taxes.  He said it was a disgrace that Councilmember Conrad said they needed to start paying at the Millman
Center.  He said there were a lot of people present that felt the same way he did.
Councilmember Conrad told Mr. Rizzo he reminded  him of Al Sharpton as he was changing it as not against
seniors.
Mr. Rizzo said that was what he said.



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - September 20, 2010

Page 8

Councilmember Conrad said it wasn �t against seniors, they were going to look across the board to be fair that was 
all he said.

There being no further comment, Councilmember Douglass motioned to adjourn the meeting, seconded by
Councilmember Mazurek the meeting unanimously adjourned by verbal  �ayes � at  8:12 p.m.

__________________________ __________________________
           Mayor Township Clerk

Approved: October 4, 2010 


